

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

No. 25, 1910

Compilation No. 11

Compilation date: 22 March 2017

Includes amendments up to: Act No. 13, 2017

Registered: 22 March 2017

Prepared by the Office of Parliamentary Counsel, Canberra

About this compilation

This compilation

This is a compilation of the *Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910* that shows the text of the law as amended and in force on 22 March 2017 (the *compilation date*).

The notes at the end of this compilation (the *endnotes*) include information about amending laws and the amendment history of provisions of the compiled law.

Uncommenced amendments

The effect of uncommenced amendments is not shown in the text of the compiled law. Any uncommenced amendments affecting the law are accessible on the Legislation Register (www.legislation.gov.au). The details of amendments made up to, but not commenced at, the compilation date are underlined in the endnotes. For more information on any uncommenced amendments, see the series page on the Legislation Register for the compiled law

Application, saving and transitional provisions for provisions and amendments

If the operation of a provision or amendment of the compiled law is affected by an application, saving or transitional provision that is not included in this compilation, details are included in the endnotes.

Editorial changes

For more information about any editorial changes made in this compilation, see the endnotes.

Modifications

If the compiled law is modified by another law, the compiled law operates as modified but the modification does not amend the text of the law. Accordingly, this compilation does not show the text of the compiled law as modified. For more information on any modifications, see the series page on the Legislation Register for the compiled law.

Self-repealing provisions

If a provision of the compiled law has been repealed in accordance with a provision of the law, details are included in the endnotes.

Authorised Version C2017C00093 registered 22/03/2017

Contents

Part I—Pre	liminar	\mathbf{y}	1
	1	Short title	1
	2	Commencement	1
	2A	Interpretation	1
Part II—Ap	plicatio	on of State Laws	2
-	3	Certain State laws not to continue in Territory	2
	4	Effect of continuance of State laws	
Part III—A	pplicati	ion of Commonwealth Acts	3
	5	Application of Fair Work Act 2009	3
	7A	Resumption of land held under Crown leases	3
	8	Postal and telegraphic rates and charges	3
Part IV—D	isposal	of Crown lands	4
	9	Disposal of Crown lands	4
	9A	Dealings with Crown lands	4
Part V—Or	dinance	es	5
	12	Ordinances	5
	12AA	Ordinance not to be re-made while required to be tabled	9
	12AB	Ordinance not to be re-made while subject to disallowance	9
	12AC	Disallowed Ordinance not to be re-made unless resolution rescinded or House approves	10
	12AD	Regulations, rules and by-laws	
	12AE	Determinations of fees or charges	
Part VI—M	[iscellar	ieous	13
	12C	Delegation by Minister	13
	12D	Regulations	13

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

i

Registered: 22/3/17

Compilation No. 11

Schedule—Laws of the State of New South Wales which are not to continue in force in the	
Territory	14
Endnotes	15
Endnote 1—About the endnotes	15
Endnote 2—Abbreviation key	16
Endnote 3—Legislation history	17
Endnote 4—Amendment history	22

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

Compilation No. 11 Compilation date: 22/3/17 Registered: 22/3/17

ii

An Act to provide for the Provisional Government of the Territory for the Seat of Government of the Commonwealth

Part I—Preliminary

1 Short title

This Act may be cited as the *Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910.*

2 Commencement

This Act shall commence on the proclaimed day referred to in section five of the *Seat of Government Acceptance Act 1909*.

2A Interpretation

In this Act, unless the contrary intention appears:

enactment has the same meaning in the Australian Capital Territory (Self-Government) Act 1988.

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

1

Registered: 22/3/17

Compilation No. 11

Part II—Application of State Laws

3 Certain State laws not to continue in Territory

Notwithstanding anything in section six of the *Seat of Government Acceptance Act 1909*, the laws of the State of New South Wales described in the Schedule to this Act shall not continue in force in the Territory.

4 Effect of continuance of State laws

Where any law of the State of New South Wales continues in force in the Territory by virtue of section six of the *Seat of Government Acceptance Act 1909*, it shall, subject to any Ordinance made by the Governor-General, have effect in the Territory as if it were a law of the Territory:

Provided that, with respect to any such law (other than such law that is an enactment), the Governor-General may by Ordinance declare that it shall, while the Ordinance remains in force, but subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, have effect in the Territory, and continue to be administered by the authorities of the State, as if the Territory continued to form part of the State.

2

Registered: 22/3/17

Part III—Application of Commonwealth Acts

5 Application of Fair Work Act 2009

- (3) The powers of the Fair Work Commission do not extend to employment in relation to which a tribunal established by an Ordinance in force under this Act or by an enactment, whether made or passed before or after the commencement of this section, has power to hear and determine disputes, claims or matters relating to the terms and conditions of the employment.
- (4) An Ordinance under this Act or an enactment may make provision for a member of the Fair Work Commission to constitute, or be a member of, a tribunal of the kind referred to in subsection (3), and nothing in this section or the *Fair Work Act 2009* prevents a member of the Fair Work Commission from accepting appointment or performing duties as, or as a member of, such a tribunal.

7A Resumption of land held under Crown leases

The application of the *Lands Acquisition Act 1989* in relation to land in the Territory does not prevent or affect the making or operation of a provision of an Ordinance or other law of the Territory (including an Ordinance or other law made before the commencement of this section) for or in relation to the resumption of land held under leases granted by or on behalf of the Crown in accordance with the provisions of those leases or otherwise on just terms.

8 Postal and telegraphic rates and charges

The rates and charges for postal articles and telegrams in the Territory and to and from the Territory shall be the same as if the Territory continued to be part of the State of New South Wales.

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

3

Compilation No. 11 Compilation date: 22/3/17 Registered: 22/3/17

Part IV—Disposal of Crown lands

9 Disposal of Crown lands

No Crown lands in the Territory shall be sold or disposed of for any estate of freehold, except in pursuance of some contract entered into, or the right to enter into which existed before the commencement of this Act, or except for the purpose of giving effect to some right which existed before the commencement of this Act under or by virtue of any law of the State of New South Wales which has continued in force in the Territory by virtue of section six of the *Seat of Government Acceptance Act 1909*, or of that Act as subsequently amended.

9A Dealings with Crown lands

The application of the *Lands Acquisition Act 1989* in relation to land in the Territory does not prevent or affect the making or operation of a provision of an Ordinance or other law of the Territory (including an Ordinance or other law made before the commencement of this section) by virtue of which:

- (a) lands in the Territory acquired by or vested in the Commonwealth may be disposed of or otherwise dealt with;
- (b) instruments, receipts and other documents in relation to any such lands may be executed; or
- (c) rights, duties and liabilities in relation to any such lands are or may be acquired, conferred or imposed.

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

Compilation No. 11

Part V—Ordinances

12 Ordinances

- (1) Subject to subsection, (1B) the Governor-General may make Ordinances for the peace, order and good government of the Territory with respect to:
 - (a) the jurisdiction, practice and procedure of the Supreme Court of the Territory;
 - (b) the classification of materials for the purposes of censorship;
 - (c) evidence;
 - (d) National Land as defined by the *Australian Capital Territory* (*Planning and Land Management*) Act 1988;
 - (e) companies;
 - (f) close corporations;
 - (g) foreign companies;
 - (h) the acquisition of shares in bodies corporate;
 - (j) the regulation of the securities industry and the futures industry; and
 - (k) the subject matter of laws specified in Schedule 3 to the *Australian Capital Territory (Self-Government) Act 1988*.
- (1A) An Ordinance made under paragraph (1)(d) has no effect to the extent that it is inconsistent with the National Capital Plan in effect under the *Australian Capital Territory (Planning and Land Management) Act 1988*, but an Ordinance shall be taken to be consistent with the Plan to the extent that it is capable of operating concurrently with the Plan.
- (1B) Subject to subsection (1C), paragraphs (1)(a), (c) and (k) cease to have effect:
 - (a) on or after 1 July 1992; or
 - (b) after regulations made for the purposes of subsection 34(6) of the *Australian Capital Territory (Self-Government) Act 1988* have amended Schedule 3 to that Act by omitting all the laws

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

5

Registered: 22/3/17

Compilation No. 11

in that Schedule, other than those referred to in Schedule 5 to that Act:

whichever occurs sooner.

- (1C) Paragraph (1)(k) does not cease to have effect on and after 1 July 1992 in regard to any matter referred to in Schedule 5 to the *Australian Capital Territory (Self-Government) Act 1988*.
 - (2) Every such Ordinance shall:
 - (a) be notified in the Gazette;
 - (b) subject to subsection (2AA), take effect:
 - (i) from the date of notification;
 - (ii) where another date (whether before or after the date of notification) is specified in the Ordinance, from the date specified; or
 - (iii) where the Ordinance so provides, from such date as is fixed by the Minister by notice in the *Gazette*; and
 - (c) be laid before each House of the Parliament within fifteen sitting days of that House after the day on which the Ordinance is made.

(2AA) An Ordinance that:

- (a) makes provision in relation to a matter arising from, connected with or consequential upon the establishment of the Territory as a body politic under the Crown; and
- (b) is made on or before Self-Government Day within the meaning of the A.C.T. Self-Government (Consequential Provisions) Act 1988;

may be expressed to take effect from the date of commencement of a provision of the *Australian Capital Territory (Self-Government) Act 1988.*

(2A) A notice in the *Gazette* of any such Ordinance having been made, and of the place or places where copies of the Ordinance can be purchased, shall be sufficient compliance with the requirement of paragraph (a) of the last preceding subsection.

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

Compilation No. 11

6

- (2B) Where a notice of an Ordinance having been made is published in accordance with subsection (2A), copies of the Ordinance shall, at the time of publication of the notice or as soon as practicable thereafter, be made available for purchase at the place, or at each of the places, specified in the notice.
- (2C) Where, on the date of publication of a notice referred to in subsection (2B), there are no copies of the Ordinance to which the notice relates available for purchase at the place, or at one or more of the places, specified in the notice, the Minister shall cause to be laid before each House of the Parliament, within 15 sitting days of that House after that date, a statement that copies of the Ordinance were not so available and the reason why they were not so available.
- (2D) Failure to comply with a requirement of subsection (2B) or (2C) shall not be taken to constitute a failure to comply with paragraph (2)(a) or subsection (2A).
- (3) If an Ordinance is not laid before each House of the Parliament in accordance with paragraph (c) of subsection (2) of this section, it ceases to have effect.
- (4) If either House of the Parliament, in pursuance of a motion of which notice has been given within fifteen sitting days after an Ordinance has been laid before that House, passes a resolution disallowing the Ordinance or a part of the Ordinance, the Ordinance or part so disallowed thereupon ceases to have effect.
- (5) If, at the expiration of fifteen sitting days after notice of a motion to disallow an Ordinance or part of an Ordinance has been given in a House of the Parliament, being notice given within fifteen sitting days after the Ordinance has been laid before that House:
 - (a) the notice has not been withdrawn and the motion has not been called on; or
 - (b) the motion has been called on, moved and seconded and has not been withdrawn or otherwise disposed of;

the Ordinance or part, as the case may be, specified in the motion shall thereupon be deemed to have been disallowed.

Authorised Version C2017C00093 registered 22/03/2017

- (5A) If, before the expiration of fifteen sitting days after notice of a motion to disallow an Ordinance or part of an Ordinance has been given in a House of the Parliament:
 - (a) the House of Representatives is dissolved or expires, or the Parliament is prorogued; and
 - (b) at the time of the dissolution, expiry or prorogation, as the case may be:
 - (i) the notice has not been withdrawn and the motion has not been called on; or
 - (ii) the motion has been called on, moved and seconded and has not been withdrawn or otherwise disposed of;

the Ordinance shall, for the purposes of the last two preceding subsections, be deemed to have been laid before that first-mentioned House on the first sitting day of that first-mentioned House after the dissolution, expiry or prorogation, as the case may be.

(6) Where an Ordinance is disallowed, or is deemed to have been disallowed, under this section or ceases to have effect by virtue of the operation of subsection (3), the disallowance of the Ordinance or the operation of subsection (3) in relation to the Ordinance, as the case may be, has the same effect as a repeal of the Ordinance.

(6A) Where:

- (a) an Ordinance (in this subsection referred to as the *relevant Ordinance*) is disallowed, or is deemed to have been disallowed, under this section or ceases to have effect by virtue of the operation of subsection (3); and
- (b) the relevant Ordinance repealed, in whole or in part, another Ordinance or any other law that was in force immediately before the relevant Ordinance came into operation;

the disallowance of the relevant Ordinance or the operation of subsection (3) in relation to the relevant Ordinance, as the case may be, has the effect of reviving that other Ordinance or law, as the case may be, from and including the date of the disallowance or the date on which the relevant Ordinance ceased to have effect by

8

- virtue of that operation of subsection (3), as the case may be, as if the relevant Ordinance had not been made.
- (6B) A reference in subsection (6) or (6A) to an Ordinance shall be read as including a reference to a part of an Ordinance, and a reference in subsection (6A) to a law has a corresponding meaning.

12AA Ordinance not to be re-made while required to be tabled

- (1) Where an Ordinance (in this section called the *original Ordinance*) has been made, no Ordinance containing a provision being the same in substance as a provision of the original Ordinance shall be made during the period defined by subsection (2) unless both Houses of the Parliament by resolution approve the making of an Ordinance containing a provision the same in substance as that provision of the original Ordinance.
- (2) The period referred to in subsection (1) is the period starting on the day on which the original Ordinance was made and ending at the end of 7 days after:
 - (a) if the original Ordinance has been laid, in accordance with subsection 12(2), before both Houses of the Parliament on the same day—that day;
 - (b) if the original Ordinance has been so laid before both Houses on different days—the later of those days; or
 - (c) if the original Ordinance has not been so laid before both Houses—the last day on which subsection 12(2) could have been complied with.
- (3) If a provision of an Ordinance is made in contravention of this section, the provision has no effect.

12AB Ordinance not to be re-made while subject to disallowance

(1) Where notice of a motion to disallow an Ordinance has been given in a House of the Parliament within 15 sitting days after the Ordinance has been laid before that House, no Ordinance containing a provision being the same in substance as a provision of the first-mentioned Ordinance shall be made unless:

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

9

Registered: 22/3/17

Compilation No. 11

- (a) the notice has been withdrawn;
- (b) the Ordinance is deemed to have been disallowed under subsection 12(5);
- (c) the motion has been withdrawn or otherwise disposed of; or
- (d) subsection 12(5A) has applied in relation to the Ordinance.

(2) Where:

- (a) because of subsection 12(5A), an Ordinance is deemed to have been laid before a House of the Parliament on a particular day; and
- (b) notice of a motion to disallow the Ordinance has been given in that House within 15 sitting days after that day;

no Ordinance containing a provision being the same in substance as a provision of the first-mentioned Ordinance shall be made unless:

- (c) the notice has been withdrawn;
- (d) the Ordinance is deemed to have been disallowed under subsection 12(5);
- (e) the motion has been withdrawn or otherwise disposed of; or
- (f) subsection 12(5A) has applied again in relation to the Ordinance.
- (3) If a provision of an Ordinance is made in contravention of this section, the provision has no effect.
- (4) This section does not limit the operation of section 12AA or 12AC.
- (5) In this section:

Ordinance includes a part of an Ordinance.

12AC Disallowed Ordinance not to be re-made unless resolution rescinded or House approves

If an Ordinance or a part of an Ordinance is disallowed, or is deemed to have been disallowed, under section 12, and an Ordinance containing a provision being the same in substance as a provision so disallowed, or deemed to have been disallowed, is

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

Compilation No. 11

10

Compilation date: 22/3/17

Registered: 22/3/17

made within 6 months after the date of the disallowance, that provision has no effect, unless:

- (a) in the case of an Ordinance, or a part of an Ordinance, disallowed by resolution—the resolution has been rescinded by the House of the Parliament by which it was passed; or
- (b) in the case of an Ordinance, or a part of an Ordinance, deemed to have been disallowed—the House of the Parliament in which notice of the motion to disallow the Ordinance or part was given has approved, by resolution, the making of a provision the same in substance as the provision deemed to have been disallowed.

12AD Regulations, rules and by-laws

- (1) All regulations made under an Ordinance shall be laid before each House of the Parliament within 15 sitting days of that House after the day on which the regulations are made and, if they are not so laid before each House of the Parliament, have no effect.
- (2) Subsections 12(4) to (6B), inclusive, and sections 12AA, 12AB and 12AC apply in relation to regulations laid before a House of the Parliament as if, in those provisions, references to an Ordinance were references to regulations and references to a provision of an Ordinance were references to a regulation.
- (3) In this section, *regulations* includes rules and by-laws.

12AE Determinations of fees or charges

- (1) Every determination shall be laid before each House of the Parliament within 15 sitting days of that House after the day on which the determination is made and, if it is not so laid before each House of the Parliament, has no effect.
- (2) Subsections 12(4) to (6B), inclusive, and sections 12AA, 12AB and 12AC apply in relation to a determination laid before a House of the Parliament as if, in those provisions, references to an Ordinance were references to a determination.

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

11

Registered: 22/3/17

Compilation No. 11

Section 12AE

(3) In this section:

determination means a determination made by a Minister under an Ordinance empowering the Minister to determine, by notice published in the *Gazette*, fees or charges for the purposes of the Ordinance.

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

Compilation No. 11

12

Compilation date: 22/3/17

Registered: 22/3/17

Part VI—Miscellaneous

12C Delegation by Minister

- (1) The Minister may, by writing under his or her hand, delegate to any person all or any of his or her powers or functions under any Ordinance made under this Act.
- (2) Every delegation under this section shall be revocable at will, and no delegation shall prevent the exercise of any power or function by the Minister.

12D Regulations

The Governor-General may make regulations, not inconsistent with this Act, prescribing all matters which are required or permitted to be prescribed, or which are necessary or convenient to be prescribed for carrying out or giving effect to this Act.

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

13

Registered: 22/3/17

Compilation No. 11

Schedule Laws of the State of New South Wales which are not to continue in force in the Territory

Schedule—Laws of the State of New South Wales which are not to continue in force in the Territory

Conciliation and Arbitration Act 1899 (1899 No. 3)

Industrial Disputes Act 1908 (1908 No. 3)

Industrial Disputes Amendment Act 1908 (1908 No. 24)

Industrial Disputes (Amendment) Act 1909 (1909 No. 26)

Local Government Act 1906 (1906 No. 56)

Local Government (Loans) Act 1907 (1907 No. 1)

Local Government (Amending) Act 1908 (1908 No. 28)

Country Towns Water and Sewerage Act 1880, and all Acts amending or extending it

All Acts imposing rates, taxes, or duties.

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

Compilation No. 11

14

Compilation date: 22/3/17

Registered: 22/3/17

Endnote 1—About the endnotes

The endnotes provide information about this compilation and the compiled law.

The following endnotes are included in every compilation:

Endnote 1—About the endnotes

Endnote 2—Abbreviation key

Endnote 3—Legislation history

Endnote 4—Amendment history

Endnotes about misdescribed amendments and other matters are included in a compilation only as necessary.

Abbreviation key—Endnote 2

The abbreviation key sets out abbreviations that may be used in the endnotes.

Legislation history and amendment history—Endnotes 3 and 4

Amending laws are annotated in the legislation history and amendment history.

The legislation history in endnote 3 provides information about each law that has amended (or will amend) the compiled law. The information includes commencement details for amending laws and details of any application, saving or transitional provisions that are not included in this compilation.

The amendment history in endnote 4 provides information about amendments at the provision (generally section or equivalent) level. It also includes information about any provision of the compiled law that has been repealed in accordance with a provision of the law.

Misdescribed amendments

A misdescribed amendment is an amendment that does not accurately describe the amendment to be made. If, despite the misdescription, the amendment can be given effect as intended, the amendment is incorporated into the compiled law and the abbreviation "(md)" added to the details of the amendment included in the amendment history.

If a misdescribed amendment cannot be given effect as intended, the abbreviation "(md not incorp)" is added to the details of the amendment included in the amendment history.

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

15

Registered: 22/3/17

Compilation No. 11

16

Endnote 2—Abbreviation key

Endnote 2—Abbreviation key

ad = added or inserted o = order(s)am = amended Ord = Ordinance

amdt = amendment orig = original

 $c = clause(s) \\ C[x] = Compilation No. \ x \\ par = paragraph(s)/subparagraph(s) \\ /sub-subparagraph(s)$

Ch = Chapter(s) pres = present

def = definition(s) prev = previous

Dict = Dictionary (prev...) = previously

disallowed = disallowed by Parliament Pt = Part(s)

 $\begin{aligned} &\text{Div} = \text{Division(s)} & & & & & r = \text{regulation(s)/rule(s)} \\ &\text{ed} = \text{editorial change} & & & & & \text{reloc} = \text{relocated} \\ &\text{exp} = \text{expires/expired or ceases/ceased to have} & & & & \text{renum} = \text{renumbered} \end{aligned}$

effect rep = repealed

F = Federal Register of Legislation rs = repealed and substitutedgaz = gazette s = section(s)/subsection(s)

LA = Legislation Act 2003 Sch = Schedule(s)

LIA = Legislative Instruments Act 2003 Sdiv = Subdivision(s)

(md) = misdescribed amendment can be given SLI = Select Legislative Instrument effect SR = Statutory Rules

effect SR = Statutory Rules
(md not incorp) = misdescribed amendment Sub-Ch = Sub-Chapter(s)

cannot be given effect SubPt = Subpart(s)
mod = modified/modification underlining = whole or par

mod = modified/modification underlining = whole or part not No. = Number(s) commenced or to be commenced

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

Compilation No. 11 Compilation date: 22/3/17 Registered: 22/3/17

Endnote 3—Legislation history

Act	Number and year	Assent	Commencement	Application, saving and transitional provisions
Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910	25, 1910	25 Nov 1910	1 Jan 1911 (s 2 and gaz 1910, p 1851)	
Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1924	8, 1924	23 July 1924	1 Jan 1925 (s 2 and gaz 1924, p 2847)	_
as amended by				
Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1928	44, 1928	28 Sept 1928	29 Dec 1928 (s 2 and gaz 1928, p 3499)	_
Judiciary Act 1927	9, 1927	8 Apr 1927	2 Sept 1929 (s 2 and gaz 1929, p 1854)	s 8
Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1930	2, 1930	29 Mar 1930	1 May 1930 (s 2 and gaz 1930, p 891)	s 6–14
Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1931	9, 1931	1 July 1931	17 Aug 1931 (s 2 and gaz 1931, p 1311)	_
Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1933	4, 1933	30 May 1933	30 May 1933	s 4–6 and 8
Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1939	86, 1939	15 Dec 1939	12 Jan 1940	s 5 and 6
Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1940	14, 1940	27 May 1940	24 June 1940	_
Commonwealth Conciliation and Arbitration Act 1947	10, 1947	20 May 1947	s 29: 8 Oct 1947 (s 2 and gaz 1947, p 2915)	_

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

17

Compilation No. 11

18

Endnote 3—Legislation history

Act	Number and year	Assent	Commencement	Application, saving and transitional provisions
Australian Capital Territory and Jervis Bay (Lands Acquisition) Act 1955	70, 1955	4 Nov 1955	16 Feb 1956 (s 2 and gaz 1956, p 472)	s 5(4)
Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1959	90, 1959	4 Dec 1959	4 Dec 1959 (s 2)	s 5
Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1963	24, 1963	28 May 1963	25 June 1963	s 3
Trade Practices Act 1965	111, 1965	18 Dec 1965	s 4(3) and (6): 1 Sept 1967 (s 2(2) and gaz 1967, p 3975)	_
Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1970	90, 1970	2 Nov 1970	30 Nov 1970	s 3(2)
Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1972	38, 1972	2 June 1972	2 June 1972 (s 2)	_
Statute Law Revision Act 1973	216, 1973	19 Dec 1973	s 9(1), 10 and Sch 1: 31 Dec 1973 (s 2)	s 9(1) and 10
Seat of Government (Administration) Amendment Act 1978	40, 1978	12 June 1978	12 June 1978 (s 2)	_
Statute Law (Miscellaneous Amendments) Act (No. 1) 1982	26, 1982	7 May 1982	s 205, 206: 4 June 1982 (s 2(12))	_
as amended by Statute Law (Miscellaneous Amendments) Act	80, 1982	22 Sept 1982	s 262, 263: 4 June 1982 (s 2(11))	_

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

Compilation No. 11 Compilation date: 22/3/17 Registered: 22/3/17

Endnote 3—Legislation history

Act	Number and year	Assent	Commencement	Application, saving and transitional provisions
Statute Law (Miscellaneous Amendments) Act (No. 2) 1982	80, 1982	22 Sept 1982	s 256, 257: 20 Oct 1982 (s 2(16))	_
Conciliation and Arbitration Amendment Act (No. 2) 1983	115, 1983	16 Dec 1983	s 41 and Sch 2: 1 June 1984 (s 2(2) and gaz 1984, No S201)	_
Statute Law (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act (No. 1) 1985	65, 1985	5 June 1985	s 3 and Sch 1: 3 July 1985 (s 2(1))	_
Statute Law (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act (No. 2) 1986	168, 1986	18 Dec 1986	s 3, 5(3) and Sch 1: 18 Dec 1986 (s 2(1))	s 5(3)
Statute Law (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1988	38, 1988	3 June 1988	s 5(1) and Sch 1: 1 July 1988 (s 2(7) and gaz 1988, No S180)	s 5(1)
Industrial Relations (Consequential Provisions) Act 1988	87, 1988	8 Nov 1988	Sch 2: 1 Mar 1989 (s 2(2) and gaz 1989, No S53)	_
Statutory Instruments (Tabling and Disallowance) Legislation Amendment Act 1988	99, 1988	2 Dec 1988	Sch (item 2): 2 Dec 1988 (s 2)	_
as amended by				
Statute Law Revision Act 1996	43, 1996	25 Oct 1996	Sch 3 (item 73): 2 Dec 1988 (s 2(3))	_
Australian Capital Territory (Planning and Land Management) Act 1988	108, 1988	6 Dec 1988	s 56–85: 31 Jan 1989 (s 2(3) and gaz 1991, No S62) Sch: 12 Mar 1991 (s 2(2)	s 56–85

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

19

Compilation No. 11

Endnote 3—Legislation history

Act	Number and year	Assent	Commencement	Application, saving and transitional provisions
			and 1989, No S164)	
A.C.T. Self-Government (Consequential Provisions) Act 1988	109, 1988	6 Dec 1988	s 32 and Sch 5: 11 May 1989 (s 2(5) and gaz 1989, No S164)	_
Lands Acquisition (Repeal and Consequential Provisions) Act 1989	21, 1989	20 Apr 1989	Sch 2: 9 June 1989 (s 2 and gaz 1989, No S185)	_
Arts, Environment, Tourism and Territories Legislation Amendment Act 1990	88, 1990	20 Nov 1990	s 27 and 28(b), (c): 11 May 1988 (s 2(4) and gaz 1989, No S164) s 28(a): 1 July 1990 (s 2(5))	_
Workplace Relations and Other Legislation Amendment Act 1996	60, 1996	25 Nov 1996	Sch 19 (item 45): 25 Nov 1996 (s 2(1) item 1)	_
Snowy Hydro Corporatisation (Consequential Amendments) Act 1997	177, 1997	21 Nov 1997	Sch 7: 28 June 2002 (s 2 and gaz 2002, No S216)	_
Criminal Code Amendment (Theft, Fraud, Bribery and Related Offences) Act 2000	137, 2000	24 Nov 2000	Sch 2 (items 364, 418, 419): 24 May 2001 (s 2(3))	Sch 2 (items 418, 419)
Statute Law Revision Act 2008	73, 2008	3 July 2008	Sch 4 (item 470): 4 July 2008 (s 2(1) item 64)	_
Fair Work (State Referral and Consequential and Other Amendments) Act 2009	54, 2009	25 June 2009	Sch 5 (items 48–51): 1 July 2009 (s 2(1) item 13)	_
Statute Law Revision Act 2011	5, 2011	22 Mar 2011	Sch 5 (item 190): 19 Apr 2011 (s 2(1) item 13)	_

20 Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

Compilation No. 11 Compilation date: 22/3/17 Registered: 22/3/17

Endnote 3—Legislation history

Act	Number and year	Assent	Commencement	Application, saving and transitional provisions
Fair Work Amendment Act 2012	174, 2012	4 Dec 2012	Sch 9 (item 1323): 1 Jan 2013 (s 2(1) item 6)	_
Statute Update (A.C.T. Self-Government (Consequential Provisions) Regulations) Act 2017	13, 2017	22 Feb 2017	Sch 1 (items 34, 35): 22 Mar 2017 (s 2(1) item 2)	_

Number and year	Gazettal or FRLI registration date	Commencement date	Application, saving and transitional provisions
2006 No. 50	17 Mar 2006	Sch 49: 27 March 2006	_
		(r 2(b))	

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

21

Registered: 22/3/17

Compilation No. 11

22

Endnote 4—Amendment history

Endnote 4—Amendment history

Provision affected	How affected
Part I	
Heading preceding s 1	rep No 216, 1973
Part I heading	ad No 216, 1973
s 2A	ad No 109, 1988
Part II	
Heading preceding s 3	rep No 216, 1973
Part II heading	ad No 216, 1973
s 4	am No 109, 1988
Part III	
Heading preceding s 5	rep No 216, 1973
Part III heading	ad No 216, 1973
s 5	rs No 10, 1947; No 38, 1972
	am No 115, 1983
	rs No 87, 1988
	am No 109, 1988; No 60, 1996; SLI 2006 No 50; No 54, 2009; No 174,
	2012
s 6	rep No 111, 1965
s 7	rep No 137, 2000
s 7A	ad No 70, 1955
	am No 21, 1989
Part IV	
Heading preceding s 9	rep No 216, 1973
Part IV heading	ad No 216, 1973
s 9	am No 4, 1933
s 9A	ad No 86, 1939
	rs No 70, 1955
	am No 21, 1989
s 10	rep No 70, 1955
Heading preceding s 11	rep No 216, 1973

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

Compilation No. 11 Compilation date: 22/3/17 Registered: 22/3/17

Endnote 4—Amendment history

Provision affected	How affected
s 11	. rep No 9, 1927
	ad No 9, 1931
	rep No 90, 1970
Part V	
Heading preceding s 12	. rep No 216, 1973
Part V heading	. ad No 216, 1973
s 12	. am No 8, 1924 (as am by No 44, 1928); No 86, 1939; No 14, 1940; No 90, 1959; No 24, 1963; No 90, 1970; No 40, 1978; No 26, 1982; No 80, 1982; No 65, 1985; No 168, 1986; No 99, 1988; No 109, 1988; No 88, 1990; No 5, 2011; No 13, 2017
s 12AA	. ad No 99, 1988 (as am by No 43, 1996)
s 12AB	. ad No 99, 1988 (as am by No 43, 1996)
s 12AC	. ad No 99, 1988 (as am by No 43, 1996)
s 12AD	. ad No 99, 1988 (as am by No 43, 1996)
s 12AE	. ad No 99, 1988 (as am by No 43, 1996)
Part VI	
Part VI heading	. ad No 216, 1973
s 12A	. ad No 2, 1930
	am No 90, 1959
	rep No 108, 1988
s 12B	. ad No 2, 1930
	rep No 109, 1988
s 12BA	. ad No 38, 1988
	rep No 177, 1997
s 12C	. ad No 2, 1930
	am No 73, 2008
s 12D	. ad No 2, 1930
Schedule	
Schedule	. am No 216, 1973

Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910

23

Registered: 22/3/17

Compilation No. 11